
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 5TH MARCH, 2015

A MEETING of the PENSION FUND COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, 

COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on THURSDAY, 5 MARCH 2015 at 

10.00 am.

Please note that there will be a pre meeting at 9.30 am. 

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

26 February 2015

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute. (Pages 1 - 6) 2 mins

Minute of Meeting held on 11 December 2014 to be noted and signed by the 
Chairman. (Copy attached).

5. Minute. (Pages 7 - 8) 2 mins

Minute of Meeting held on 29 January 2015 to be noted and signed by the 
Chairman. (Copy attached).

6. Risk Register Update. (Pages 9 - 14) 10 mins

Consider report by Chief Financial Officer. (Copy attached).
7. Pension Fund Charges. (Pages 15 - 16) 15 mins

Consider report by Chief Officer Human Resources. (Copy attached). 
8. Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 5 mins

Consider verbal report from HR Shared Services Manager. 
9. Any Other Items Previously Circulated. 

10. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

Public Document Pack



11. Items Likely To Be Taken In Private. 

Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion should be 
approved:-

“That und Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the aforementioned Act.”

12. Minute. (Pages 17 - 20) 2 mins

Private Section of Minute of Meeting held on 11 December 2014 to be noted 
and signed by the Chairman. (Copy attached).

13. Quarter Performance Update (Pages 21 - 56) 30 mins

Consider report by Mr Kenneth Ettles. AON Hewitt. (Copy attached).
14. Presentation - M&G Investments 60 mins

15. Presentation - LGT 30 mins

16. Presentation - UBS 30 mins

17. Property and Cash Investment Update 5 mins

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors B White (Chairman), J Campbell, M J Cook, G Edgar, 
G Logan, J G Mitchell and S Mountford.

Please direct any enquiries to Judith Turnbull Tel No. 01835 826556
E-mail: Judith.Turnbull@scotborders.gov.uk



ITEM NO. 4
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

MINUTE of MEETING of the PENSION FUND 
COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells 
on 11 December 2014 at 10.00 am

------------------

Present:- Councillors B. White (Chairman),  J. Campbell, G. Edgar, G. Logan, J. Mitchell, 
(from para 4 of private business), S. Mountford. Mr J. Terras.

Apologies:- Councillor M. Cook. Mr A. Barclay, Mr J. Moody, Mr P. Smith, Mr N. Wood.
In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Finance Manager, Mr K. Ettles – AON Hewitt 

Consulting, Treasury and Capital Manager, HR Shared Services Manager, 
Democratic Services Officer (F. Walling).

---------------------------------------- 

MINUTE
1. There had been circulated copies of the Minute of Meeting of 4 September 2014.

DECISION:
NOTED for signature by the Chairman.

PROFILE OF PENSION FUND MEMBERSHIP
2. With reference to paragraph 2 of the Minute of 4 September 2014, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Chief Officer Human Resources detailing the composition and profile 
of the membership of the Pension Fund.  The report, presented by the HR Shared Services 
Manager, explained that the Fund membership at the 31 March 2014 had increased by 245 to 
9,556.  This showed an increase of 68 contributing members which was mainly attributable to 
those individuals who had opted to join the scheme following promotion of the scheme as 
employers complied with Auto Enrolment legislation.  A full statistical analysis of the active 
scheme membership as at 6 November 2014 was contained in Appendix 1 to the report and 
this highlighted that the employer breakdown showed that Scottish Borders Council provided 
the highest number of scheme members, with over 4,000 scheme members, 91.75% of the 
active scheme membership.  The removal of the normal retirement age had seen an increase 
in the number of employees continuing to work, and be members of the pension scheme, 
past their 65th birthday.  The breakdown of employees by salary banding indicated that the 
majority of employees fell into the lowest banding in terms of employee contribution rate of 
5.5%.  The remaining spread of scheme members was indicative of structures in the 
employing organisations with significantly lower numbers in the higher salary bands.  It was 
proposed that reports be presented to Committee on an annual basis to provide a breakdown 
of the profile and composition of the Fund membership, which would assist in the 
management of associated Fund risks.  Members discussed the report and particularly the 
issue of a tipping point where the change in membership profile would lead to the number of 
pensioners and deferred members outweighing the number of contributing members.  Mr 
Ettles advised that this point had not yet been reached and that he would provide a model to 
plan the management of assets for that time.  In response to a Member’s request the HR 
Shared Services Manager agreed to provide the breakdown of the member profile graphically 
or in percentage terms in future reports.

DECISION
NOTED:-

(a)    the composition and profile of the scheme membership as outlined in the report; 
and

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



(b) that reports would be brought to Committee on an annual basis to monitor year 
on year changes in the composition and profile of scheme membership.

TRIENNIAL VALUATION
3. The Chairman welcomed to the meeting Alison Hamilton, a partner at Barnett Waddingham, 

to present the initial results of the Actuarial Valuation of the Scottish Borders Council Pension 
Fund, with the valuation date of 31 March 2014.  Copies of an explanatory document were 
provided for Members which summarised the purpose of the valuation and the process by 
which this was carried out, in addition to the initial valuation results for the Council’s Pension 
Fund.  Ms Hamilton explained the purpose of the ongoing triennial funding which was to 
identify how much employers needed to pay in future to have enough assets to pay benefits.   
The actuary had regard to the desirability of maintaining as stable a contribution rate as 
possible which was governed by the funding model/investment strategy.  She summarised 
how the valuation was carried out and the assumptions made in respect of inflation, salary 
increases, discount rates and other financial and statistical assumptions using past 
experience and national data. Ms Hamilton went on to highlight the main results of the 2014 
valuation.  The Fund’s assets at the end of the year totalled £486,064,000.  The actual 
investment return was 8.5% against an expected return of 6.4%.  Actual pay increases had 
been 1.4% per annum against an expected 5.0% per annum.  The valuation showed that the 
funding level of the Fund at 31 March 2014 had been revised to 100% which compared to 
96% at the time of the last valuation in 2011.  Going forward Ms Hamilton referred to possible 
effects of the introduction of the new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 2015 which 
contained new scheme benefits and encouraged longer term savings. It was assumed that 
some members would opt for the 50/50 option within the scheme.  She also stressed the 
sensitivity of the dividend growth assumption which was +/- 0.5%.  Members received 
answers to their questions from Ms Hamilton who was thanked by the Chairman for her 
attendance.  It was noted that after the report’s assumptions had been agreed with the Chief 
Financial Officer the final report would be signed off at the end of March 2015 and presented 
to the June meeting of the Pension Fund Committee.

DECISION
NOTED the 2014 Actuarial Valuation initial results. 

GOVERNANCE UPDATE
4. With reference to paragraph 4 of the Minute of 4 September 2014, the Corporate Finance 

Manager, Lynn Mirley, updated Members on proposed Governance arrangements in 
connection with the Scottish Local Government Pension Scheme Reform.  Mrs Mirley 
advised that she had taken a presentation to a Trade Union event in November where there 
had been broad acceptance of the proposals.  The suggestion was that the Pension Fund 
Committee would be made up only of current elected Members.  The Pension Fund 
Committee would meet jointly with the Pension Board on a quarterly basis with the Pension 
Board including non-voting employer and trade union representatives.  It was further 
proposed to create a new Investment and Performance Sub-Committee for detailed 
monitoring of Pension Investments.  The Sub-Committee would make recommendations in 
respect of strategic asset allocation, fund manager changes and investment adviser strategy 
considerations for approval by the Pension Fund Committee/Pension Board.  It was 
suggested that the Sub Committee would include one or two non-voting members to be 
nominated from the Pension Board and to attend as observers.  Mrs Mirley was in the 
process of drafting a new Scheme of Administration for the two bodies. She circulated the 
proposed remit.  Members were in general agreement with the proposals and were in favour 
of holding just two all-day meetings per year of the Sub Committee at which all the Fund 
Managers could present their reports.

DECISION
(a) AGREED the principle governance arrangements to be included in the 

Scheme of Administration as follows:-

Page 2



             (i) the Pension Fund Committee be made up only of current elected 
Members;

             (ii)        the Pension Fund Committee meet jointly with the Pension Board on a 
quarterly basis; 

           (iii) a new Investment and Performance Sub Committee be created for 
detailed monitoring of pension investments and to make 
recommendations to the Pension Board; and

             (iv) one or two non-voting members be nominated from the Pension Board 
to attend the Investment and Performance Sub Committee as 
observers.

(b) NOTED that the draft Scheme of Administration, in respect of the Scottish 
Local Government Pension Scheme Reform, would be presented for 
consideration at a special meeting of the Pension Fund Committee to be held 
on 29 January 2015.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 2015
5. With reference to paragraph 4 of the Minute of 4 September 2014, there had been circulated 

copies of a report by the Chief Officer Human Resources providing a further update on 
progress made at a National level with regard to the design of the new Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) in Scotland, scheduled for implementation from 1 April 2015.  The 
report explained that the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 2014 
were laid before the Scottish Parliament on 9 June 2014 and would come into force from 1 
April 2015.  These regulations covered Membership, Contributions, Benefits and 
Administration.  Appendix 1 to the report detailed the most significant changes within the 
these regulations and this bulletin had been issued to all scheme members along with their 
Annual Benefit Statement and separately to all new scheme members who had joined the 
scheme since 1 April 2014.  It had also been provided to representatives of all the current 
active Admitted and Scheduled Bodies.  The scheme legislation changes would have an 
impact on the Pension Fund with regard to the level of contributions being collected. The 
impact of the above changes in the scheme legislation had been considered with regard to 
the Scottish Borders Council scheme membership resulting in an estimated increase in 
annual contribution of £106,324.94.  Appendix 2 to the report detailed the Implementation 
Plan with regard to the administration of the new scheme. This highlighted the main tasks 
that needed to be carried out to ensure a smooth implementation and transition from the 
current to the new scheme. Details of the communications plan were also included within the 
implementation plan.

DECISION
(a) NOTED:-

(i) the progress that had been made at a National level, particularly with the 
laying of the Scheme Regulations before the Scottish Parliament;

(ii) the impact of the scheme design in relation to the contributions payable; 
and

(iii) the main changes to the scheme and that these had been conveyed to all 
current scheme members.

(b) AGREED to approve the implementation plan, including the planned 
communication and training strategy that would be applied, to ensure a smooth 
transition between the current and new schemes.

Page 3



RISK REVIEW
6. There had been circulated copies of a report by the Chief Financial Officer providing the 

Pension Fund Committee with an opportunity to review the Risks previously categorised as 
“Red” under the Council’s approach to managing risk, and updating members on progress 
made in mitigating the effect of these risks on the pension fund.  Appendix 1 to the report 
detailed the progress of the additional control measures on the risks identified as “Red” and 
“Amber” and Appendix 2 detailed the new risks identified around possible changes to 
national jurisdictions and their initial scores.  The current approved risk register contained 2 
Red risks and 13 Amber risks.  The Treasury and Capital Manager answered Members’ 
questions on the scoring of specific risks as detailed in Appendix 1. With regard to the risk 
‘frequency of early retirements increases to levels in excess of the actuarial assumptions’ 
she advised that she would draft wording to incorporate with this the new risk around the 
early release of pension facilitated by new legislation.   At the meeting in March a number of 
new risks had been identified in connection with changes in national jurisdictions which could 
have arisen from the Referendum and possible changes to the position of the United 
Kingdom within the European Union.  These risks were not scored at the meeting and it was 
agreed they would be bought back to the December meeting.  Due to the result of the 
Referendum only one risk remained a valid risk for inclusion in the risk register.  There was 
also discussion about the need to consider recent developments around pensions liberation 
which had the potential of enabling members to withdraw transfer values from the Fund.  It 
was identified that this would need to be considered more fully at the next risk review.  

DECISION
(a) NOTED the progress on the Red and Amber risk items as contained in Appendix 

1 to the report

(b) AGREED:-

(i) to a quarterly Red risk review being undertaken with the next due in March 
2015; 

(ii) to the inclusion of the new risk contained in Appendix 2; and

(iii) to consider the implications of pension liberation initiatives as part of the 
next risk review.

URGENT BUSINESS
7. Under Section 50B(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Chairman was of 

the opinion that the item dealt with in the following paragraph should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency, in view of the need to keep Members informed.

SPECIAL MEETING
8. The Chairman asked Members to note that there would be a special meeting of the Pension 

Fund Committee immediately following a special meeting of Council on Thursday 29 January 
2015 to discuss arrangements for the staff being transferred from employment with the 
Council to the Arms Length Organisation ‘the Care Company’ to be included in the Scottish 
Borders Council Pension Scheme.  With reference to paragraph 4 above, it was agreed that 
a further governance update should also be considered at this special meeting.

DECISION
NOTED

PRIVATE BUSINESS
9. DECISION

AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 
exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business contained in 
the following items on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 6 and 8 of part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Act.

Page 4



SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS

Minute 
1. The Committee noted the Private Minute of the meeting of 4 September 2014.

Transition to New Investment Managers
2. The Committee noted a presentation by State Street.

Quarter Performance Update
3. The Committee noted a report by AON Hewitt Consulting.

Presentation – Morgan Stanley
4. The Committee noted the presentation by Morgan Stanley

Presentation – Baillie Gifford
5. The Committee noted the presentation by Baillie Gifford.

The meeting concluded at 3.10 p.m.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

MINUTE of MEETING of the PENSION FUND 
COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells 
on 29 January 2015 at 10.45 am

------------------

Present:- Councillors B White (Chairman),  J Campbell, M Cook, G Edgar, J Mitchell, S 
Mountford, Mr A Barclay, Mr P Smith. 

Apologies:-     Councillor G Logan, Mr J Terras. 
In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Finance Manager, HR Shared Services 

Manager, Democratic Services Officer (J Turnbull).  
---------------------------------------- 

MEMBER
Councillor Cook joined the meeting during consideration of the item below. 

PROPOSED ADMISSION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME
1. There had been circulated copies of report by the Chief Executive requesting approval for the 

admission of the care company SB Cares comprising Scottish Borders Cares LLP and 
Scottish Borders Supports LLP, hereafter referred to as SB Cares, into the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. The current provision of Adult Services by the Council was 
scheduled to transfer to the new care company SB Cares which would be 100% owned by 
Scottish Borders Council on 1 April 2015.  The Council had agreed as part of the business 
case approved on 30 October 2014, that staff who were currently members of the Council’s 
Pension Scheme, would remain members following the establishment of the new company 
and SB Cares was consequently required to apply for admission as two ‘admitted bodies’.  
Future members of staff employed by the care company would also be covered by the 
admission agreement which would be on an ‘open’ basis.  The pension benefits of current 
and future staff would be unaffected unless changes were made to the overarching pension 
scheme.  It was agreed at Council on 29 January 2015 that the Council would underwrite the 
risk of SB Cares' membership of the Pension Fund should the company cease to trade.  It 
should be noted that SB Cares under the terms of the partnership agreement was precluded 
from varying the terms of the admission agreement without the approval of the Council and 
the Pension Fund. 

2. The Chief Financial Officer was in attendance and referred to section 4 of the report, which 
set out the basis on which the admission would be granted. The Pension Fund’s Actuary had 
determined that the appropriate contribution rate SB Cares and, on the basis that the Council 
would underwrite the premature termination risk, it would operate under the pooled rate of 
18%.  Auto enrolment would apply to new employees.  The Committee requested a further 
report detailing the Terms and Conditions of SB Cares’ admission to the Pension Fund. 

DECISION
AGREED:- 
(a) To enter into an appropriate agreement with Scottish Borders Cares LLP and 

Scottish Borders Supports LLP to admit these bodies to membership of the 
pension fund on terms and conditions to the satisfaction of the Chief Executive 
and the Chief Financial Officer; and

(b) To request that the Chief Officer – Human Resources brought back to Pension 
Fund Committee a report detailing the Terms and Conditions of SB Cares’ 
admission to the Pension Fund. 

LOCAL GOVERNANCE PENSION SCHEME REFORM - GOVERNANCE
3. There had been circulated copies of a report by Chief Financial Officer which proposed 

amended governance arrangements to the Pension Fund Committee following changes 
Page 7

Agenda Item 5



being proposed for the governance of the Pension Fund and creation of a Pension Board.  
The report detailed the background to the requirement to create a Pension Board with 
Employer and Trade Union Representatives, with a constitution based on a model set out 
nationally and its function set out in new Local Governance Pension Scheme (Governance) 
(Scotland) Regulations.  The report presented the draft constitution for the Pension Board in 
Appendix 2 to the report, the amendment to the Scheme of Administration for the resulting 
changes required to the Pension Fund Committee and the requirement to create a new 
Pension Fund Investment and Performance Sub-Committee.  

4. The Corporate Finance Manager was in attendance and highlighted that in the draft 
constitution, membership of the Pension Board would consist of equal numbers of trade 
union representatives and employer representatives.  There would be four Trade Union 
representatives, one from each member of the three unions, the Council’s Joint Trade Union 
Consultative Group would decide on the other member.   The term of office had been 
amended from the model constitution, representatives would serve a period of four years or 
to the next local government election, whichever was earlier.   The Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Pension Board would be rotated on an annual basis between the Trade Union and 
Employer Representative on the Pension Board.   The Pension Board would normally meet 
immediately after the joint meeting with the Pension Fund Committee.   All members and 
named substitutes of the Pension Board would be trained and included in the annual training 
programme for the Pension Fund.   

5. The Committee requested further clarification in respect of Appendix 3, specifically in relation 
to the decision making process of the joint meeting.  Mr Robertson clarified for competent 
decisions to be made at the joint meeting, the Pension Fund Committee membership 
required to be quorate (i.e. four elected members who were on the Pension Fund 
Committee).  It was not essential to decision making that the Pension Board membership 
was quorate at the joint meeting, however if the Pension Board met on its own then it requied 
to be quorate in accordance with the constitution set out in Appendix 2.   

6. The Committee requested that the wording be amended in Appendix 4 – Functions 
Delegated – to include “#” at item 2 and 5 of the Functions referred.

7. It was acknowledged that the Scheme of Administration would need to be amended to reflect 
the changes in the draft Constitution.  Mrs Mirley advised that once the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Governance) (Scotland) Regulations had been approved by the Scottish 
Parliament a further report would be brought to Council for ratification, once established, the 
Pension Board could also make any changes if necessary.   

DECISION
AGREED:-
(a) The creation of a Pension Board for the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund 

with a constitution as set out in Appendix 2, subject to any subsequent 
revisions required by financial regulations; 

(b) The amendment of the Council’s Scheme of Administration to incorporate the 
changes to the Executive’s functions to include the following under “Staffing”: 
Employer discretions under Local Government Pension Scheme, within the 
terms of the relevant legislation; and

(c) The amendment of the Council’s Scheme of Administration to incorporate the 
changes to the Pension Fund Committee’s functions as set out in Appendix 3; 
and

(d) The amendment of the Council’s Scheme of Administration to incorporate the 
creation of a Pension Fund Investment and Performance Sub-Committee as set 
out in Appendix 4, with the inclusion of “#” in front of 2 and 5 within the 
Functions Referred section.

The meeting concluded at 11.30 am. 

Page 8



Pension Fund Committee, 11 December 2014 1

ITEM NO. 6  

RISK REGISTER UPDATE

Report by Chief Financial Officer

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE

05 March 2015

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides the Pension Fund Committee with an 
opportunity to review the Risks previously categorised as “Red” 
under the Council’s approach to managing risk, and updates 
members on progress made in mitigating the effect of these risks 
on the pension fund.

1.2 Identifying and managing risk is a corner stone of effective management 
and is required under the CIPFA guidance “Delivering Governance in Local 
Government Framework 2007”.  It is further reflected and enhanced in the 
“Local Government Pension Scheme” published by CIPFA.

1.3 Appendix 1 details the progress of the additional control measures on the 
risk identified as “Red”.

1.4 Appendix 2 details a new risk identified around impact of wider legislative 
Pension changes for pension liberation initiative and an initial score.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Pension Fund Committee:- 

(a) Notes the progress on the Red risk items contained in 
Appendix 1

(b) Agrees to a Full risk review being undertaken in June 2015; 
and

(c) Agrees to the inclusion of the new risk contained in Appendix 
2.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Pension Fund Committee, 11 December 2014 2

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 Identifying and managing risk is a corner stone of effective management 
and is required under the CIPFA guidance “Delivering Governance in Local 
Government Framework 2007”.  It is further reflected and enhanced in the 
“Local Government Pension Scheme” published by CIPFA.

3.2 The Risk Register has been developed in line with the Council’s approach to 
risk management as set out in “Managing Risk: A Practical Guide to Risk 
Management in the Borders” and assesses risks using a risk score based on 
likelihood and impact.  It has been further refined to reflect best practice 
“Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme” published by 
CIPFA. 

3.4 A full risk review was undertaken in June 2014 and agreed the Council’s 
policy of review cycle, as shown below was followed:

RED - 3 monthly reviews of action progress throughout the year

AMBER   - 6 monthly reviews throughout the year coinciding with red 
reviews

YELLOW/
GREEN - Annual reviews, coinciding with red and amber reviews

This report forms the third of the 3 monthly reviews of the Red risk items.  
The next stage of the risk process will be a review of all risks at the June 
meeting.

4 RISK PROGRESS

4.1 The current approved risk register contains 2 Red risks.  These are shown 
in Appendix 1 with an update on progress in relation to the proposed 
actions.

4.2 At December Pension Fund meeting a new risk was identified around the 
recent changes to wider Pension legislation and the introduction of pension 
liberation initiatives which could lead to Members with drawing large 
elements for their pension fund early.  The risk is contained in Appendix 2 
and has been provisionally scored by Officers for discussion.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial
There are no direct financial implications of this report.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations
The purpose of providing the update to the Committee is as part of 
improving the risk management framework for the Pension Fund to 
demonstrate that it understands the risks faced and how it is proposing to 
manage, mitigate or tolerate these risks.

Page 10



Pension Fund Committee, 11 December 2014 3

5.3 Equalities
It is anticipated that there are no adverse impact due to race, disability, 
gender, age, sexual orientation or religion/belief arising from the proposals 
in this report.

5.4 Acting Sustainably

There are no direct economic, social or environmental issues with this 
report which would affect the Council’s sustainability policy.

5.5 Carbon Management

There are no direct carbon emissions impacts as a result of this report.

5.6 Rural Proofing 

It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact on the rural area from the 
proposals contained in this report. 

5.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

No changes to the Scheme of Administration of Scheme of Delegation are 
required as a result of this report.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, the Service Director 
Strategy and Policy, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Chief Officer HR 
and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted in the preparation of this 
report and any comments received on the report have been incorporated.  

Approved by

David Robertson
Chief Financial Officer Signature …………………………………..

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Kirsty Robb Treasury & Capital Manager, 01835 825249

Background Papers:  
Previous Minute Reference:  Pension Fund Committee 11 December 2014

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  The Treasury & Capital Team can 
also give information on other language translations as well as providing additional 
copies.

Contact us at: Treasury & Capital Team, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, 
Melrose, TD6 OSA Tel: 01835 825016 Fax 01835 825166. email: 
treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 11

mailto:treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Register: SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL PENSION FUND

Likelihood Impact Risk Score

1. Asset & Investment Risks

2. Employer Risks

3. Resource & Skill Risks

4. Liquidity Risks

5. Administrative Risks

6. Regulatory & Compliance Risks

7. Reputation Risks

Active participation in Scottish 

pension investment and 

administration networks.  

Involvement with COSLA 

discussions on Pensions.

6.2 Legislation changes Loss of independence; impact on 

Fund value and benefits

Tolerate Risk.                                                          

Seek to input into any of the 

legislative change through active 

membership of COSLA.

4 4 16

16Implementation of Auto 

enrolment for the Council met in 

July 2013. Adopted transitional 

arrangements until Sept 2017.  

Borders College staging date 

February 2014 and SBHA 

staging date April 2014. Pension 

Administration Strategy in place 

and monitored.

Treat Risk.                                                             

Close monitoring of early retiral 

decisions and quantification of 

impact on pension fund to be 

included as part of the Council 

reports.  Communication strategy 

to be developed linking to new 

self service systems currently 

being implemented.

4 42.1 Changes in composition of 

Pension Fund membership i.e. 

active/deferred/pensioners

Fund Matures more quickly than 

currently anticipated and this will 

require a complete review and 

potential change to the 

investment strategy and 

employers contribution levels.

Risk Control Measures in 

Place

Proposed Additional 

Control Measures

Assessment of Residual Risk 

(likelihood x impact)          With 

Control Measures

APPENDIX 1

No.

RISK                                                    
Threat to achievement of 

business objective

Scope/potential 

consequences of risk

P
age 13



APPENDIX 2

Risk Register: SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL PENSION FUND

Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score

New risks which will be scored at the March Pension Fund Appendix 2

4.8 3 2 6 2 2 4requirement to release 

large amounts of cash 

resulting in requirement to 

disinvest current assets

Scheme sanction charges 

for any transfer to 

unapproved scheme

Requests for transfers are 

currently mitigated by 

obtaining enhanced levels of 

indemnity for the members, 

the receiving scheme and 

written confirmation of the 

scheme approval from 

HMRC.

Monitoring will be undertaken 

during the year and reported to 

Members as part of the annual 

report. With effect from 1 April 

2015 members with funds in 

excess of £30k must receive 

professional advice from a 

Financial Conduct (FCA) 

regulated advisor. Continue to 

monitor ongoing legislation 

around this area.

Proposed Additional 

Control Measures

Assessment of Residual Risk 

(likelihood x impact)          With 

Control Measures

With introduction of new 

access pension reforms 

members may elect to 

transfer funds to gain early 

release of cash

No.

Risk 

Categor

y

RISK                                                    
Threat to achievement of 

business objective

Scope/potential 

consequences of risk

Assessment of Risk            

(likelihood x impact)         

Assume No Controls in Place Risk Control Measures 

in Place

P
age 14



Pension Fund Committee 5 March 2015 1

ITEM NO. 7

PENSION FUND CHARGES

Report by Chief Officer Human Resources

PENSIONS FUND COMMITTEE

5 March 2015

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY
1.1 To review the scale of charges levied by the Pension Fund in 

relation to Pension Sharing orders and implement an annual review 
mechanism in line with the Pension Increase percentage.

1.2 The scale of charges has not been reviewed since 2007 and has seen these 
charges be applied at a reduced rate when compared to other Scottish 
Pension Funds.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 It is recommended that the Pension Fund Committee:- 

(a)   Agrees that the scale of charges should be retrospectively 
increased in line with Pension Increase.

(b)   Agrees that the scale of charges be reviewed on an annual 
basis with the increase based on the Pension Increase 
percentage, as per the Annual Revaluation Order.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Pension Fund Committee 5 March 2015 2

3 BACKGROUND
3.1 The provision to recharge members of the Pension Fund where the 

administering authority has incurred additional expenses/costs are 
contained within the Pensions Family Law Statutory Instrument “The 
Pensions on Divorce etc. (Charging) Regulations 2000” [SI 2000/1409].

3.2 Regulations 2, 3, 5 and 6 of the regulations set out the requirements that 
must be met by the administering authority before it can charge to cover 
the costs of a Pension Sharing order or provision.

3.3 There is no specific charging structure or revaluation method contained 
within the regulations.

3.4 In 2000, The Local Government Pensions Committee (LGPC) published a 
“Pension Sharing on Divorce” guide for authorities administering the Local 
Government Pension Scheme which contained a proposed schedule of 
charges.

3.5 The guidance note stated “The proposed schedule of charges has been 
based on costing’s undertaken by Scottish administering authorities. 
Authorities are, of course, free to determine their own level of 
charges although a national approach is seen to have merits.” 

3.6 At the outset in 2000 the Fund adopted the national position with regard 
to charging and then increased the charges in line with the Pensions 
Increase percentage, this continued until 2007. Since then there has been 
no increase to the charges and this has seen us differ in charge rates from 
other Scottish Pension Funds.

4 PROPOSAL
4.1 It is proposed that we retrospectively apply the Pension Increase 

percentages to the 2007 rates to bring us in line with other Scottish 
Pension Funds. See table at Appendix 1, which also details the current 
charges levied by Lothian Pension Fund.

4.2 Appendix 2 details the procedures that will be carried out and the 
associated charges on the assumption that the proposal detailed at 4.1 
above is applied.

4.3 For future years the Scale of Charges are increased in line with the 
Pension Increase percentage, as per the Annual Revaluation Order which 
is based on the Consumer Price Index, rounded to the nearest whole 
pound. In the event that there is no Pension Increase the Scale of 
Charges shall remain as per the previous financial year.

Page 16



Pension Fund Committee 5 March 2015 3

5 IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Financial

There are no financial implications beyond those contained in the report.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations
By increasing the charges for Pension Sharing Orders this ensures that 
the Fund recovers an appropriate fee in relation to the additional amount 
of work required within the Pensions Administration Team. Failure to 
increase and review on an annual basis would result in the additional work 
having a detrimental financial impact on the Fund.

5.3 Equalities
It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact due to race, disability, 
gender, age, sexual orientation or religion/belief arising from the 
proposals contained in this report.  It should also be recognised that an 
independent Equality Impact Assessment of the scheme has been carried 
out.

5.4 Acting Sustainably
There are no significant effects on the economy, community or 
environment.

5.5 Carbon Management
No effect on carbon emissions are anticipated from the recommendation 
of this report.

5.6 Rural Proofing 
It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact on the rural area from the 
proposals contained in this report. 

5.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
No changes to either the Scheme of Administration or the Scheme of
Delegation are required as a result of this report.

6 CONSULTATION
6.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, 

the Service Director Strategy and Policy, the Chief Officer Audit and Risk 
and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted in the preparation of this 
report and any comments received have been incorporated into the final 
report.

Approved by

Chief Officer Human Resources Signature ……………………………………

Page 17



Pension Fund Committee 5 March 2015 4

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Ian Angus HR Shared Services Manager 01835 826696

Background Papers:  Pensions Family Law Statutory Instrument “The Pensions on 
Divorce etc. (Charging) Regulations 2000” [SI 2000/1409].

Previous Minute Reference:  N/A

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  Ian Angus can also give 
information on other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Ian Angus, HR Shared Services Manager, Council Headquarters, 
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA; Tel: 01835 826696; Fax: 01835 825011;    
E-mail iangus@scotborders.gov.uk.

Page 18

mailto:iangus@scotborders.gov.uk


ITEM NO. 7 - APPENDIX 1

Divorce Charges (review):

PI PI applied 
from annual 
review order

CETV Extra CETV Sharing Order/ 
New record

Value Pension Settle TV out

Lothian Current £112.00 N/A £629.00 £299.00 £270.00

2015 1.2% 
(anticipated)

2014 *** 2.7% x 1.4963 £112.00 £44.00 £628.00 £299.00 £269.00
2013 2.2% - - - - - -
2012 5.2% - - - - - -
2011 3.1% - - - - - -
2010 Nil - - - - - -
2009 5.0% - - - - - -
2008 3.9% - - - - - -
2007 ** 3.6% + 3.6% £90.00 £32.00 £495.00 £230.00 £210.00
2006 2.7% + 2.7% £85.00 £32.00 £475.00 £220.00 £200.00
2005 3.1% + 5.9% £80.00 £30.00 £450.00 £210.00 £190.00
2004 2.8% See above - - - - -
2003 1.7% + 6.7% £80.00 £30.00 £450.00 £210.00 £190.00
2002 1.7% See above - - - - -
2001 3.3% See above - - - - -
2000 * Original Schedule £75.00 £30.00 £420.00 £200.00 £180.00

*** Proposed new charge level
** Current Charging level
* Original Charging structure

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ITEM NO. 7 - APPENDIX 2

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL PENSION FUND
LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (SCOTLAND)
(PENSION SHARING ON DIVORCE) REGULATIONS 2000

SCALE OF CHARGES (from 01/04/14)
PLEASE ENSURE ALL PARTIES INVOLVED ARE AWARE OF THESE CHARGES

A. Scheme  member not yet retired - about to divorce
PROCEDURE COMMENTS COSTS

1. Produce CETV quotations
                                                                                       
Produce partial quotation or full 
CETV outwith PSA 1993

Standard entitlement under PSA  1993 
ie separation date is within last 12 months

ie separation date is outwith last 12 
months            

£ 0
 

£112.00

2. Additional CETV quotations       
( based on the same period with 
new valuation date)

     (based on different periods )  

£44.00 per additional quote

£112.00 per additional quote
3. Provision of other information If under disclosure of information 

regulations

Otherwise, depending on nature of request

£ 0

maximum £112.00
4.    Receipt of pension sharing order    
or consent  order

To cover all administration costs from 
receipt of share order to completion of  
pension payments 

£628.00

5.    Settle a transfer out, assuming all 
documentation is in place after setting 
up a relevant record   (instead of 4 
above)

£269.00

6.    Objections to share order by 
scheme

Onus should be on the draftsman of the 
order to ensure that it is correctly drafted 
prior to issue.

Costs for dealing with inoperable 
orders will be passed on.

7.    Set up earmarking order Deductible from the lump sum payment at 
the time of payment

£112.00 plus R.P.I. to date of 
payment

B. Scheme member retired - pension in payment - about to divorce
PROCEDURE COMMENTS COSTS

1.    Assess the value of the pension in 
payment including any contingent 
benefits

Actual cost dependent upon charges 
incurred for actuarial time

£ 299.00

2 2.  Administrative cost of collecting 
and interpreting medical evidence in 
respect of divorcing couple. 

It is assumed that the charges for supply 
of medical evidence will be met by the 
divorcing couple

Payment for the supply of 
medical evidence will be the 
responsibility of the member.

3. Establish new pension record To cover all administration costs from 
receipt of pension sharing order to 
completion of pension payments

£628.00

4.    Settle a transfer out, assuming all 
documentation is in place after setting 
up a relevant record. (Instead of 3 
above)

£269.00

Please note any additional costs may arise if specialist actuarial, legal etc. advice is required. Any additional costs will 
be charged by the relevant actuary, solicitor etc. Where an employee has an Additional Voluntary Contribution contract, 
the Insurance Co. or Building Society may charge for information. The charge will be that made by the body concerned.

Please also note that VAT will be payable in addition to the charges in the above tables
Payment must be made before any action is undertaken. 
Cheques to be made payable to “Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund”.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	5 Minute.
	6 Risk Register Update.
	Item No. 6 - Appendices -  Risk Register Update

	7 Pension Fund Charges.
	Item No. 7 - Pension Fund Charges (Appendix 1)
	Item No. 7 - Pension Fund Charges (Appendix 2)

	12 Minute.
	13 Quarter Performance Update

